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          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Welcome to the

          3  City Council that represents the people of the City

          4  of New York.

          5                 I need to take care of one item.  If

          6  you are part of the panels that we invited here to

          7  speak today, I need you to fill up that piece of

          8  paper no matter what.  If you are one of the persons

          9  that we told you that you are going to speaking in

         10  there, you need to fill up that piece of paper.  If

         11  not, I will not have your name here, and I do not

         12  know that you have arrived, okay? Then, I hope that

         13  everybody did that.

         14                 Therefore at this moment, I will read

         15  my opening statement, and then Council Member Weprin

         16  will do the same and after that, every council

         17  member will introduce themself with the area that

         18  they represent, okay?

         19                 Good afternoon and thank you for

         20  joining us for today's hearing on the Committee on

         21  Mental Health, Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug

         22  Abuse, and Disability Services.

         23                 I am Margarita Lopez, and I am the

         24  Chair of this Committee.  I am pleased to be joined

         25  today by the prime sponsor of the Resolution 248,
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          2  David Weprin.

          3                 Today, we will be addressing the lack

          4  of parity with which the insurance industry treats

          5  mental health and chemical dependency, as compared

          6  to other mental health care matters.

          7                 Especially, we will be considering

          8  Resolution 248, calling upon New York State

          9  Legislature to adopt S. 5329 and

         10  A. 8301, also known as "Timothy's Law," which will

         11  provide New Yorkers with fair insurance treatment

         12  for mental health and chemical dependency services

         13                 I want to thank the Council Member

         14  Weprin for his leadership on this tremendously

         15  important issue.  Before turning the floor over to

         16  Council Member Weprin, I want to point out that

         17  another bill is under consideration in the Senate,

         18  7296- A.  Senate bill 72- 96 A, is a mental health

         19  care parity billed in name only. It is an

         20  unacceptable resolution to the problem because it

         21  will prohibit employers with 50 or fewer employees,

         22  restrict coverage for children and family to those

         23  cases that have reached a crisis point.  Number

         24  three, prohibit alcoholism and substance abuse

         25  treatment, and number four, it expires in two years,
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          2  on December 31st, 2007.

          3                 I want to make clear that the Council

          4  resolution before us supports S. 5329 and A. 8301,

          5  which will provide for full parity for the care of

          6  people.

          7                 At this time, I turn the floor over

          8  to Council Member Weprin.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Thank you

         10  Chair Lopez for your constant leadership in the area

         11  of mental health, alcoholism and substance abuse,

         12  and for bringing this resolution to the Committee

         13  today, and hopefully to the full council next week.

         14                 In New York State mental health

         15  coverage is being cast as a step- child in the

         16  overall world of health services.  This inequity was

         17  tragically highlighted by the tragic death of young

         18  Timothy O'Clair.

         19                 Timothy's Law is unique because it

         20  cries out for immediate action.  The need for action

         21  became all the more necessary after I met with Tom

         22  O'Clair, Timothy's father.

         23                 As a legislator, I constantly receive

         24  calls for action on a variety of issues, and

         25  statistical charts and tables follow these requests.
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          2    No such backup was needed when I met with Tom

          3  O'Clair.  It was one father talking to another. No

          4  parent wants to loose a child.  We both understood

          5  that what happened, and we shared no doubts as what

          6  had to be done.

          7                 Tom informed me that the bill now

          8  called Timothy's Law has been passed in the Assembly

          9  for the past two years, and it is awaiting action in

         10  the New York State Senate.  The legislation is clear

         11  and simple.  It establishes for providing parity and

         12  care between physical and mental health treatment.

         13                 The current discriminatory practice,

         14  and that is what it is, discriminatory, that views

         15  mental health care as less than an equal of our

         16  State's health care program is disturbing, and

         17  emerges as a crisis in our state's health care

         18  system.  The statistics provide us with the

         19  possibility of many more Timothy's, unfortunately.

         20                 According to the National Institute

         21  of Mental Health, 50 million American adults suffer

         22  from some form of a mental disorder.

         23                 In New York State, there is a wide

         24  disparity between the number of visits covered per

         25  year, between physical and mental health treatment.
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          2  Thirty- three states have already passed parity

          3  legislation with minimal or no premium increases.

          4                 I urge all of my colleagues in city

          5  and state government, to support this resolution and

          6  to enact this legislation as 33 other states have to

          7  end these discriminatory practices.

          8                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  At this moment I

         10  would like to ask the members of the Committee to

         11  introduce themself for the people of the public to

         12  know who you are, and the district that you

         13  represent, and if you would like to make a statement

         14  you are free to do so.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Good

         16  afternoon, I am Council Member Annabel Palma and I

         17  represent the 18th District in the Bronx.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I am Council

         19  Member Stewart, representing the 45th District in

         20  Central Brooklyn, Flatbush, East Flatbush, Midwood,

         21  and Flatlands area.  Thank you.

         22                 MS. DE PEDRO:  I am Mari De Pedro,

         23  Legislative Policy Analyst for the Mental Health and

         24  Disability Committee.

         25                 Good afternoon.
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          2                 MS. GONZALEZ:  Laura Gonzalez,

          3  Counsel to the Mental Health Committee.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I am Gale

          5  Brewer, and I represent the West Side of Manhattan

          6  and the northern part of Clinton, and I Chair

          7  Technology, and I just throw out that the sites,

          8  websites, that feature information about mental

          9  health have many, many, many times the number of

         10  hits of any website to do with physical health.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Good

         12  afternoon, I am Helen Foster from the 16th District

         13  in the Bronx.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Hi, my name

         15  is Jim Gennaro. I represent the 24th District in

         16  Eastern Queens, and I wish to publicly thank the

         17  Chair of this Committee, Chair Lopez and Council

         18  Member Weprin for their leadership on this very

         19  important issue.

         20                 I look forward to voting yes and will

         21  do so in Timothy's memory.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MS. EMERMAN:  Anne Emerman, Staff to

         24  the Mental Health Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And like I always
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          2  indicate, it is a pity that Anne Emerman had to

          3  speak in this fashion because this Council is not

          4  wheelchair accessible, and that is the reason I had

          5  to turn this microphone in that way, and I hope that

          6  there will come a day in which we are clear that all

          7  members of our society are included in government,

          8  and that this podium be wheelchair accessible

          9  eventually.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  At this

         12  time, I would like to call Tom O'Clair and Fred

         13  Levine up.

         14                 Will you please each raise your right

         15  hands?

         16                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         17  testimony you provide here today will be truthful in

         18  all respects?

         19                 MR. LEVINE:  I do.

         20                 MR. O'CLAIR:  I do.

         21                 Council Members Weprin and Lopez,

         22  esteemed members of the City Council of New York,

         23  good afternoon.

         24                 I would like to thank you all for the

         25  opportunity to come before you and testify in this
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          2  very important piece of legislation.

          3                 My name is Tom O'Clair.  My 12 year

          4  old son, Timothy, is the subject of Timothy's Law,

          5  currently under consideration in the New York State

          6  Legislature.

          7                 Though I am not a resident of this

          8  fine city, I will be greatly affected by the passage

          9  of this bill in New York State but also will you and

         10  everybody in the state of New York.

         11                 We have been dubbed the "Empire

         12  State" and for a great number of years we took the

         13  lead in helping to develop this nation we live in.

         14  New York was extremely instrumental in taking it

         15  through its infancy.

         16                 Throughout New York's and the nations

         17  story, we have been the ones to set an example for

         18  the rest of the nation to look up to and follow.

         19  That is a hard position to be in at times, as a a

         20  parent I know this.  But, we have the chance once

         21  again, to show our neighbors and leaders that we are

         22  willing to do what is right to provide for our state

         23  and its residents.

         24                 Currently, there are 33 other states

         25  with one form of mental health parity or another,
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          2  our neighbors in Vermont, which by the way was a

          3  part of New York State at one time as Timothy

          4  pointed out to me after a social studies lesson,

          5  being the most comprehensive in the nation.

          6                 A saying comes to mind that was

          7  posted in Timothy's elementary school, "What's right

          8  is not always popular, And what's popular is not

          9  always right."  This is the message that we need to

         10  send to the state legislature, the same message that

         11  this resolution will carry to the halls of our state

         12  capitol.

         13                 My involvement in this is not for

         14  Timothy's sake, for Timothy it is too late, four

         15  years too late.

         16                 Every day people are suffering from

         17  one mental disorder or another, suffering

         18  needlessly, I might add, because of a label.  We

         19  have the power in our hands to stop the suffering

         20  for millions of New Yorkers by supporting this

         21  resolution and sending our message to the state

         22  legislature.  Our state Assembly is in full support

         23  of this law, for over ten years they have supported

         24  the idea of parity in health services, not carving

         25  out a group of people because their diagnosis has
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          2  the word "mental" in front of it.  For the past two

          3  years they have overwhelmingly supported Timothy's

          4  Law by passing it with landslide votes.

          5                 The Senate has, for the past two

          6  years held it in committee choosing no action.

          7                 This year they introduced their own

          8  version of a mental health parity bill, which still

          9  sits in committee.  They have gone through the

         10  motions of action but have nothing to show for their

         11  efforts.

         12                 We need to urge them to not abandon

         13  Timothy's Law, to allow the residents of this city

         14  and state the level of care they deserve.  We have

         15  gone too far too long without insurance coverage for

         16  a population of residents who suffer simply because

         17  of a label.  We need to stop treating people with

         18  mental disorders as second class citizens, or worse.

         19                 Mental health disorders lead to

         20  physical disorders and the reverse is true.  Someone

         21  diagnosed with cancer can and will fall into a

         22  depression.  We will be covered by our insurance for

         23  the treatment of the physical part but not the

         24  emotional or "mental" part.

         25                 On the same note, someone who suffers
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          2  from depression and attempts suicide or self

          3  mutilates will get insured treatment for the

          4  physical damage they have done to their body, but

          5  not the root of the problem, which would have

          6  prevented their self harm to begin with.  There is

          7  something despicably wrong with this kind of

          8  thinking.

          9                 Most mental disorders are treatable

         10  if they are allowed the proper diagnosis.  As an

         11  example, Bipolar disorder, schizophrenia and

         12  depression have successful treatment rates of

         13  70 to 80 percent, where a common medical procedure,

         14  angioplasty has only a 40 percent success rate.

         15  Yet, angioplasty is covered 100 percent by

         16  insurance, where mental health disorders have unfair

         17  and discriminatory limits imposed upon them.

         18                 We need to right this wrong, we need

         19  to step forward out of the dark ages where people

         20  with mental disorders were locked away and forgotten

         21  because we did not understand them.  We need to step

         22  forward from the times when people with mental

         23  disorders were considered possessed by demons, and

         24  burned at the stake.

         25                 We need to step to the present, and
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          2  move toward the future when there will be no

          3  differentiation between "mental" and "physical"

          4  disorders, when it will all be covered under the

          5  heading of "Health".

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. LEVINE:  Good afternoon and thank

          8  you Chair Lopez and Council Member Weprin for

          9  convening this important hearing.

         10                 My name is Fred Levine, and I am a

         11  New Yorker with Bipolar illness, commonly referred

         12  to as "manic depression".

         13                 With fewer than two weeks left in the

         14  legislative session in Albany, I appear today in

         15  support of City Council Resolution 248.  This

         16  resolution urges the New York State Legislature to

         17  adopt Timothy's Law, the version known as Senate

         18  5329, and Assembly 8301, during this legislative

         19  session, and to end the arbitrary stigma, the

         20  invidious discrimination against mental health

         21  treatment, and alcohol and substance abuse services.

         22  It still exists in insurance policies issued in the

         23  State of New York.  Thirty- three states have acted,

         24  in one form or another, to end this discrimination.

         25  There is a track- record in thirty- three states as

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  to the costs, as to the impact, as to the lessening

          3  disability rates of people who get early treatment,

          4  and as to the utilization of services in those

          5  states.  It is now so long overdue for New York to

          6  do the same, and the City Council should do

          7  everything within its power to help do so.

          8                 Six years ago, Frances Olivero, a

          9  member of Fountain House and the inspirational

         10  leader of the Half Fare Fairness Campaign, came to

         11  this City Hall to shares vision:  That access to

         12  affordable public transportation would save lives,

         13  launch people on the road to recovery, and reduce

         14  the costs within the public mental health system.

         15  Frances was proven right when this Committee

         16  listened, acted decisively, and helped to enact the

         17  MTA Half Fare Fairness Law.

         18                 Today, Tom O'Clair, the inspirational

         19  leader of Timothy's Campaign, has come to this

         20  Chamber to shares vision: That no family should ever

         21  have to endure the unspeakable pain of

         22  losing a child to suicide.  That no family should

         23  ever have to watch a child's treatable illness go

         24  untreated because it was arbitrarily excluded from

         25  insurance coverage.
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          2                 Just as you did six years ago, you

          3  can enact Resolution 248, and urge your colleagues

          4  in the Assembly and Senate to enact Timothy's Law.

          5  You can also urge your colleagues in the Legislature

          6  to act now and stop the in- fighting and resolve the

          7  differences between Timothy's Law and a much more

          8  restrictive bill that was introduced in the Senate

          9  on May 21.

         10                 At your request, I have included a

         11  detailed analysis of the differences between

         12  Timothy's Law and this more restrictive bill that

         13  was introduced in the Senate but, rather than

         14  recount those differences, I would like to tell a

         15  personal story of my own experiences with mental

         16  health services.

         17                 I know firsthand that mental health

         18  parity will help mental health consumers, like

         19  myself, and their families access services and

         20  treatment needed for rehabilitation and recovery.  I

         21  know firsthand that mental health parity will help

         22  insurance carriers, help them achieve their business

         23  objectives.  For 18 years, I was the senior

         24  regulatory counsel of the Continental Insurance

         25  Company, and I saw firsthand the inner workings of
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          2  insurance companies, and I know that business

          3  objectives can be served at the same time.

          4                 Having joined Continental Insurance

          5  in 1978, I had a solid track record of

          6  accomplishments, but in 1984 very few people within

          7  Continental knew that I suffered from a mental

          8  illness;  Bipolar illness.  The stigma and shame I

          9  felt prevented me from disclosing it within the

         10  company, and maintaining a recommended treatment

         11  regimen.  I was, as they say, non- compliant with my

         12  treatment because I felt ashamed of the way in which

         13  mental health treatment and services were treated,

         14  not just in insurance policies, but throughout our

         15  community.  The shame was internalized each time.  I

         16  realized that Continental's medical benefits, the

         17  medical benefits that they provided to me and other

         18  employees, covered the cost of my illness only in a

         19  fraction.  Yet, Continental's medical benefits

         20  covered every other physical ailment that I came

         21  upon.  It covered my own reckless sports injuries,

         22  reconstructive surgery of my Achilles tendon to the

         23  tune of more than $16,000 but if I wanted to go see

         24  my psychiatrist for medication management, for 22

         25  visits during the year, there was no coverage, and
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          2  for even the 20 or 21 visits, for which there was

          3  coverage, the coverage was at a paltry sum.  It was

          4  almost better not to apply for the benefit.  In

          5  December of that year, of 1984, my medication no

          6  longer kept me stable and I remained at home for

          7  seven weeks.  When I became stable, I decided that I

          8  could no longer keep this burden of secrecy, and I

          9  told my employer the true story of my illness, my

         10  condition.  This was years before the ADA ever came

         11  into effect.

         12                 Fortunately, Continental reacted

         13  positively and supportive, and they said, "So far as

         14  we are concerned, there is no difference between

         15  you, what you have experienced and a broken leg. If

         16  you broke your leg and needed a ride home at night,

         17  we would provide it.  We will treat your mental

         18  illness the same way."  I was very fortunate, they

         19  decided to create their own version of parity for me

         20  but at the same time, for their policy holders all

         21  across the country, there was no parity.

         22                 New York State, once a leader in

         23  every field, has fallen so very behind in this area.

         24

         25                 The City Council's leadership and
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          2  advocacy with the New York State Legislature could

          3  return New York to its former position of

          4  leadership, and I thank you very much again for

          5  convening this hearing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Is there any

          7  questions from the members of the Council for this

          8  panel?  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  I just wanted

         10  to say to Mr. O'Clair that we really appreciate your

         11  courage and your perseverance.  I know it has been a

         12  terrible couple of years but we think that if you

         13  persevere and continue, we will all succeed

         14  together.

         15                 MR. O'CLAIR:  I want to thank you,

         16  Councilman Weprin.

         17                 My family believes, and I do speak

         18  for my family, that had we let this defeat us when

         19  it happened, then it would be more of a tragedy then

         20  it is now to allow other people to continue to

         21  suffer.  Unfortunately, in the past three years

         22  since we have lost Timothy, there have been many

         23  other losses of many other Timothy's.  There have

         24  been many other people suffering from their mental

         25  illness unneededly, and we need to stop that as soon
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          2  as possible.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Mr. O'Clair can

          6  you tell the council members how long this bill has

          7  been in the Senate and the Assembly?

          8                 MR. O'CLAIR:  Under the heading of

          9  Timothy's Law, it was passed in the Assembly for the

         10  past two years by a landslide vote.  The exact same

         11  bill was introduced into the Senate last year, where

         12  it remains untouched in Committee.

         13                 Mental health parity has been ringing

         14  through the halls of the state capital for over ten

         15  years, in one form or another, under one title or

         16  another.

         17                 It is long overdue.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  My name is

         20  Councilman Stewart.

         21                 Could you tell me basically why is

         22  this bill being held up in the state Senate?  Why,

         23  what is the reasoning?

         24                 MR. O'CLAIR:  The reason that has

         25  been shared with myself and the other supporters of
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          2  it, and the other committee members, the coalition

          3  members, is the one fear is cost.  Another fear is

          4  that there would be more people forced into the

          5  roles of uninsured.

          6                 There are supporting documents for

          7  the opposition of this, however those documents are

          8  outdated.  One is from 1996, and there is another

          9  one that goes as far back as 1984.

         10                 These supporting documents, in many

         11  cases, are before we had managed care.  They are

         12  before we had some of the treatments that we have

         13  available to us now, and they are before some of the

         14  medications that we have available to us now.  So,

         15  they are severely outdated.  They are being compared

         16  to a study we had done in 2002 by Price Waterhouse

         17  Coopers who arrived at the cost of parity being

         18  $1.26 per member, per month.  The evidence is out

         19  there that their worries, their concerns are just

         20  unfounded but there is somebody who is listening to

         21  them, obviously, because here we are.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I just

         23  cannot understand if this is party politics.

         24                 If the Assembly was is the majority

         25  of Democrats, has overwhelmingly voted for this
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          2  bill, and the Senate which is the opposite,

          3  Republicans, I just do not understand.  They do not

          4  see the need to take care of their own

          5  constituencies?

          6                 MR. O'CLAIR:  The Senate sees a need,

          7  to me obviously, because they have drafted their own

          8  version of a parity bill.  It is far inferior to

          9  Timothy's Law.  It has got severe limits to it.

         10  That tells me that they realize we need to do

         11  something but there is no agreement between the

         12  Houses yet.  The Senate still needs to pass

         13  Timothy's Law, or their own parity bill, so the two

         14  Houses can even begin to speak and come to an

         15  agreement.               COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:

         16  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you to both

         18  of you.

         19                 I appreciate your presentation and we

         20  will have a minute of a recess.  I need to talk to

         21  the council members for one minute behind here.

         22                 God bless both of you.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Next I

         24  would like to call Mr. Lee Marks.  Please have a

         25  seat.
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          2                 Will you please raise your right

          3  hand?

          4                 Do you swear or affirm that the

          5  testimony you will provide here today will be

          6  truthful in all respects?

          7                 MR. MARKS:  I do, thank you.

          8                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you,

          9  you may proceed.

         10                 MR. MARKS:  I want to thank you very

         11  much for allowing me to come in today, Chairman

         12  Lopez, members of the Committee.

         13                 For me, this is a welcome back.  I

         14  worked in this esteemed body for a good number of

         15  years, roughly 15 years ago, worked with many of

         16  your colleagues, worked as a lobbyist for District

         17  Council 37.  So, for me, it is really nice to be

         18  back here, and it is kind of like being home.

         19                 I want to tell you a little bit about

         20  who we are before we get started.  You have my

         21  statement, it is a little long, so I think for the

         22  sake of brevity, we will move through it --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I am going to

         24  limit your presentation to three minutes.

         25                 MR. MARKS:  Three minutes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes, if you

          3  listen to them, same thing.  To tell you the truth,

          4  I am ready to vote this bill without listening to

          5  what you have to say.

          6                 Therefore, everybody here--.

          7                 MR. MARKS:  Well, would you prefer me

          8  not to make a statement?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No, you should

         10  make your statement.

         11                 MR. MARKS:  Oh, okay, fine.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Because that is

         13  Margarita Lopez speaking, that is not speaking for

         14  anybody else in here.

         15                 MR. MARKS:  Well, I would appreciate

         16  if you could keep an open mind for at least another

         17  three minutes, and then perhaps we can move on from

         18  there.

         19                 Very quickly, the New York Health

         20  Plan Association is comprised of 31 managed care

         21  plans.  These plans include fully licensed HMO's,

         22  prepaid health service plans, managed long- term

         23  care plans, and preferred provider organizations.

         24                 HPA member plans provide health care

         25  service to more than six million New Yorkers
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          2  enrolled through employers as individuals, or

          3  through government sponsored programs, Medicare,

          4  Medicaid, Child Health Plus, Family Health Plus, as

          5  well as Healthy New York.

          6                 We oppose health insurance mandates

          7  from a philosophical standpoint, really for five

          8  reasons.  Health insurance mandates increase costs,

          9  they decrease the number of people who have

         10  insurance, they hit primarily only small businesses

         11  who can least afford it, they tend or can run

         12  contrary to scientific data, and there is no process

         13  in this state that allows us to weigh through them.

         14                 Very quickly going through them.

         15                 We have an insurance crisis here in

         16  the state of New York.  For the last several years,

         17  we have seen health insurance costs rise two to

         18  three times the rate of inflation.  The result has

         19  been staggering to people who are paying premiums

         20  out there. Most of you are fully aware, and it is

         21  well documented, of the costs that have gone up in

         22  prescription care, but if you look at the chart that

         23  I have provided, in fact the largest segment of

         24  health care cost increase in the last few years, has

         25  been hospitals who drive most of health care costs
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          2  in this state.  The impact is felt on premiums.

          3                 The Kaiser Study showed in 2000, that

          4  the average family premium in this state or in this

          5  country, was $6,400.  By 2003, that had risen almost

          6  50 percent to $9,000 for a family.

          7                 In New York, it is far more severe.

          8  We spend far more for health care in this city and

          9  state then we do almost anywhere in the entire

         10  country.  As of 2002, we had the third highest

         11  family premiums in the entire country.

         12                 Mandates add to those costs.  You

         13  cannot buy a bare bones policy here in the state of

         14  New York.  For you to buy a policy here, it has to

         15  come with 33 additional mandates.  We have provided

         16  those for you in my testimony, and those 33 mandates

         17  cost premium payers more than 12 percent of premium

         18  every single year. More interesting, and more

         19  disconcerting is the fact that, just like Timothy,

         20  there are more than 100 of these bills in

         21  introduction, and I have attached them to your

         22  statements there. And, I will tell you now, frankly,

         23  health plans would love to cover all of these.  We

         24  are a margin business, the more we sell the better

         25  we do.  But the reality is, that I cannot find
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          2  anybody on Avenue D in Manhattan, or Avenue B out in

          3  Brooklyn that could buy a policy that covers all of

          4  the things we would like to see in it. It just does

          5  not exist.  There are not enough dollars out there

          6  for people to pay for this.  As a result, we end up

          7  having to pick and choose as to what can be covered,

          8  and what is affordable because affordability is what

          9  we have here.  We have an affordability crisis.

         10  That is what is key here.

         11                 Right now in this state, we have 3

         12  million people who have no insurance, zero.  They do

         13  not get mental health care. They do not get well

         14  baby visits.  They do not get anything, zero. It is

         15  worse in the City of New York.  In the City of New

         16  York, one out of four people under the age of 65,

         17  have no coverage, 25 percent.  It is an unacceptable

         18  number, by any standards.

         19                 In terms of the employer- based

         20  insurance, that has shrunk here in the City of New

         21  York.  For the first time, less than 50 percent of

         22  the people have insurance in this city are employed.

         23  Everybody else is in public programs of some kind.

         24  That is a crisis.

         25                 How does this play out?  Well,
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          2  according to Lewin, for every one percent increase

          3  in health insurance costs or premium, 30,000 New

          4  Yorkers loose health insurance.  To us, it is a

          5  simple question.  Do we provide more health

          6  insurance for those who are fortunate to have it by

          7  providing them additional benefits, or do we take

          8  care of 3 million people who now have nothing?  Our

          9  view is we want to sell our policies to every New

         10  Yorker before we start looking to expand new

         11  benefits on to where they are now.

         12                 We are concerned that this hits

         13  primarily on small business.  It is intriguing to us

         14  that as we talk about parity in mental health, there

         15  is another side of parity that we need to careful of

         16  too.  If you are a large company in the City of New

         17  York, and you self- insure for your insurance, you

         18  are not covered by state health insurance mandates.

         19                 I will wrap up as quickly as I can.

         20                 That is an important point, again,

         21  all your

         22  Fortune 500 companies in this city will not be

         23  impacted by Timothy's Law because they self- insure.

         24    Only the small guys on Avenue D in New York, and

         25  in Brooklyn, and all across your districts are they
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          2  guys who are paying for this.

          3                 We think there is a better way.

          4  Twenty- two other states now require a full- fledged

          5  analysis of mandates before we go ahead and pass

          6  them.  We do not have that in the State of New York.

          7  The last several years, we have seen a wide variety

          8  of mandates that have come down, covering everything

          9  from infertility, to prostate treatments that we

         10  were not efficacious, to also chiropractic

         11  treatments, which come at a very high cost.

         12                 The question is, how we are going to

         13  protect those people who are struggling to provide

         14  health insurance now?  One of the biggest concerns I

         15  have here today is that while you have the health

         16  plans up here, the real people who should be sitting

         17  here are small businesses.  They are the ones,

         18  excuse me?  Excuse me, I am sorry.  Those are the

         19  ones who are going to be asked to pay for this bill.

         20    That is a real concern for us.

         21                 In closing, you may note of the new

         22  bill that is out there, I will tell you that that

         23  bill certainly contains some of the protections and

         24  some of the management tools, that as much as the

         25  advocates talk about we need to manage this, are now
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          2  in that type of bill.  We think that makes sense.

          3  We think that is important.

          4                 I do not want to take too much more

          5  of your time. I am here for questions, and I am

          6  available to you at any other time.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you, Sir.

          9                 Council members, any one of you have

         10  a question for the person who just presented?

         11                 I only have one question, Sir, for my

         12  part.

         13                 MR. MARKS:  Go ahead, thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  In your testimony

         15  you said hospital services are by far the largest

         16  the segment of national health care spending, and

         17  are responsible for more than half, 51 percent, of

         18  the total increase of the cost.

         19                 MR. MARKS:  Correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Isn't that true,

         21  that the majority of people who suffer from mental

         22  illness get hospitalized because they never get

         23  treated outside of the hospital, and they can in the

         24  hospital because they were never treated prior to.

         25  Isn't that true?  That is true.
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          2                 MR. MARKS:  Yes, and it is also true

          3  that 3 million people have no insurance --.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Excuse me, Sir,

          5  that is true, Sir.  Excuse me, Sir.

          6                 MR. MARKS:  That is true.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That they end in

          8  the hospital because they got not treatment outside

          9  of the hospital to begin with.

         10                 MR. MARKS:  That may or may not be

         11  true.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Therefore, this

         13  bill will not increase the cost because if they be

         14  treated outside, the cost that you adjudicate to

         15  this kind of problem is due to in- patient services,

         16  and if they treat it outside, the cost will not be

         17  increased.

         18                 MR. MARKS:  May I respond?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         20                 MR. MARKS:  May I respond?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Sure.

         22                 MR. MARKS:  Okay, one place where we

         23  seem to have some good consensus with the advocates

         24  for this bill is;  A.  This bill will cost more,  2.

         25    By their own study, this bill will cause people to
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          2  loose insurance.  Those are two major things that

          3  both sides agree on.  So, in fact, this will cost

          4  more, and their own study that came out in 2002,

          5  actually underlines that.  And they say, that the

          6  way we get this price down to $1.26, is by people

          7  loosing all coverage.  That should not be acceptable

          8  to you.  It is not to us.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  To me our City

         10  and our state discriminate and have bigotry against

         11  people with mental illness. That is what is not

         12  acceptable to me.  We live in a nation of inclusion,

         13  not in a nation of exclusion.

         14                 Thank you, Sir.

         15                 MR. MARKS:  May I respond to that?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No, Sir.

         17                 MR. MARKS:  Oh, okay.

         18                 Thank you very much for your

         19  presentation.

         20                 At this moment we are going to

         21  proceed to vote.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lopez.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Brewer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Aye, and I
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          2  thank very much the sponsors of the bill,

          3  particularly the lead sponsor, David Weprin, and I

          4  appreciate the family being here because I know that

          5  it is a lot of effort on your part.

          6                 Thank you very much, aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Foster.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Aye, and I

          9  would just like to extend my thanks to the family of

         10  Timothy for having the courage to fight for other

         11  kids, and my heart goes out to you.

         12                 God bless you.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gennaro.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I vote yes,

         15  and I wish to be associated with the remarks of my

         16  colleague, Helen Foster.

         17                 God bless Timothy and his family.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Stewart.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I vote aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Palma.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  I vote aye,

         22  and I would also like to thank David Weprin for his

         23  leadership around this bill, and my heart also goes

         24  out to you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Council Member
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          2  Weprin, would you like to make a statement before I

          3  vote?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  No, that is

          5  fine.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  At this moment, I

          7  would like to make a statement for my part.

          8                 I have been a person who worked with

          9  mentally ill people for the last 20 years of my

         10  life.  As a person who has been in this field,

         11  seeing people kill themselves, jumping out of

         12  bridges, jumping in rivers, killing themselves by

         13  overdoses of drug and alcohol because they did not

         14  have access to medication or medical care, to deal

         15  with the demons in their mind, and the impossibility

         16  to deal with what they had to put up with this

         17  epidemiology that mental illness come.  I am here,

         18  sitting with this belief that we have not come in

         19  this State to a conclusion, a clear conclusion, that

         20  we have a Tier 2 system. A system for those who do

         21  not suffer from mental illness, and a tier for those

         22  who suffer only from mental health, for physical

         23  issues.

         24                 It is time for us to comprehend that

         25  when the Constitution of our nation was created, did
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          2  not excluded people with mental illness or

          3  disabilities.  As a matter of fact, they were

          4  included.

          5                 Passing this bill at the Senate and

          6  at the Assembly, will certify and will make clear

          7  that our Constitution still is alive and full of

          8  goodness for all of us in our nation.

          9                 Not passing this bill is an insult,

         10  and it is respect to our Constitution, that in my

         11  belief is here to protect all and not some.

         12                 Senate and Assembly, please come to

         13  senses, pass this bill, pass it immediately.  There

         14  is no reason why it should not be done.

         15                 I vote aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of six in

         17  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         18  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         19                 Council members, please sign the

         20  Committee Report.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And now the other

         23  people who are remaining to testify in this hearing,

         24  are going to be called to testify.

         25                 We needed to take care of this
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          2  technical aspect of the bill.  We have done that.

          3  But, we want to hear from you, please do not leave.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Next, Dr.

          6  Evelyn Roberts, Dr. Barry Perlman, and Dr. Jeffrey

          7  Borenstein will you please come up?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  One minute before

          9  all of the members have to go to the next meetings

         10  that they have.

         11                 I just want to make a very sad

         12  announcement that is not something that makes me

         13  happy but it makes me happy at the same time because

         14  she is going to a better place for her.

         15                 Laura Gonzalez, the lawyer to my

         16  Committee, has decided to leave us, and we are

         17  loosing some person here who is very important to

         18  this committee.  And I want to inform that to the

         19  members that she will be going to another job, in

         20  some other place.             We will miss you a lot

         21  and you have been great in this Committee.

         22                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you

         23  very much for those kind words.  It has been an

         24  honor and a pleasure to work with the Council, and

         25  to work with you, Council Member Lopez.
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          2                 I will miss you.

          3                 Will you please, I guess I still have

          4  a month left here, so, let me do my job.

          5                 Please raise your right hands, and do

          6  you swear or affirm that the testimony you will

          7  provide here today will be truthful in all respects?

          8                 MS. ROBERTS:  Yes.

          9                 MR. BORENSTEIN:  I do.

         10                 MR. PERLMAN:  I do.

         11                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  You may

         12  proceed, and we will begin with Dr. Roberts.

         13                 MS. ROBERTS:  Thank you.

         14                 I am representing the National

         15  Alliance for the Mentally Ill of New York City,

         16  which is a membership organization, a grass roots

         17  organization of consumers and family members with

         18  mental illnesses.  And, by the way, the testimony I

         19  gave you, I will not be reading the whole thing.  Do

         20  not worry.

         21                 Advocates, consumers, family members

         22  and practitioners have long known that early, easy

         23  and consistent access to treatment is crucial to

         24  avoiding expensive hospitalizations, job loss, and

         25  in the worse case, suicide.
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          2                 Unfortunately, many people do not get

          3  treatment. Because health insurance does not even

          4  begin to cover the cost of treatment, working people

          5  and their families who need mental health treatment

          6  must either pay for it themselves or go without.

          7  This is part of the reason why fewer than 50 percent

          8  of adults, and 33 percent of children with mental

          9  disorders receive treatment.            Studies have

         10  shown that 55 percent of privately insured

         11  individuals say that the number one reason they do

         12  not seek mental health treatment is because they are

         13  worried about the cost.            Eighty- three

         14  percent of Americans agree that it is unfair for

         15  health insurance companies to require people to pay

         16  much more out- of- pocket for mental health care.

         17                 Seventy- nine percent of Americans

         18  support parity legislation even if it results in an

         19  increase in their health insurance premiums.

         20                 So, why has comprehensive mental

         21  health parity stalled both in New York State and

         22  nationally?

         23                 There are widespread

         24  misunderstandings in the business community as to

         25  the costs and benefits of providing good,
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          2  accessible, comprehensive mental health benefits.

          3                 Some business interests, insurance

          4  interests, and legislators believe that parity

          5  legislation will cause health and health insurance

          6  costs to spiral out of control.  Some are concerned

          7  that money would be wasted on ineffective therapies.However

          8  , recent studies have begun to provide the hard data

          9  needed to support the view that providing employees

         10  to access to good, affordable mental health benefits

         11  is cost effective to business.  Some employers,

         12  especially large, self- insured employers are

         13  starting to understand that mental illnesses are

         14  prevalent, and therefore, they exist in the

         15  workplace, that mental health treatment works better

         16  than many treatments for other chronic illnesses,

         17  and that the costs to their businesses of not

         18  providing affordable, accessible, and quality mental

         19  health treatment, are higher than the cost of

         20  providing that treatment.

         21                 Some business leaders are starting to

         22  understand that if they want to save money on health

         23  and productivity costs, they should not cut their

         24  mental health benefits but, rather, expand them

         25  because by doing so they will save money on in-
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          2  patient psychiatric hospitalization costs, general

          3  medical costs, short and long- term disability

          4  costs, and the loss of productivity caused by

          5  absenteeism and presenteeism.

          6                 Here are some facts from recent

          7  studies.

          8                 When First Chicago, which is now part

          9  of Bank One, expanded its mental health benefits,

         10  psychiatric in- patient costs per member declined by

         11  $56.00, while out- patient and pharmacy costs went

         12  up by only $24.00 for a net savings of $32.00.

         13                 When a large Connecticut corporation

         14  cut their mental health benefits by 30 percent, in

         15  what they hoped would be a cost saving measure, that

         16  actually triggered a 37 percent increase in medical

         17  care use and sick leave by employees using mental

         18  health services, which ended up costing the

         19  corporation more money, rather than less.

         20                 Employees spend more days in bed, and

         21  experience more physical pain because of depression

         22  than they do because of hypertension, diabetes, and

         23  gastrointestinal problems, other chronic illnesses.

         24                 The top five employee health

         25  conditions, which include depression, cost employers
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          2  more than $180 billion annually in lost productivity

          3  when workers are at work but unable to function to

          4  their full potential.

          5                 Mental illness ranks first in terms

          6  of causing disability in the United States.

          7                 Depression alone, according to a

          8  recent study is one of the leading causes of lost

          9  productivity in the workplace, costing U.S.

         10  Employers $44 billion annually.

         11                 What are some major corporations

         12  doing about this and why?  Several major employers,

         13  including Delta Airlines, Bank One, Pitney Bowes,

         14  American Express, HBO, and Merrill Lynch have

         15  voluntarily eliminated arbitrary restrictions on

         16  mental health benefits with great benefit not only

         17  to their employees, but also to their bottom line.

         18  They are not doing this because they have to, they

         19  are doing it because it is good business.

         20                 Smaller employers, however, must

         21  purchase ready- made health insurance plans.

         22  Available policies offer only limited mental health

         23  benefits.

         24                 Policies with comprehensive mental

         25  health benefits will not be available or affordable
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          2  until parity legislation requires it.

          3                 By requiring health insurance to have

          4  equal mental health benefits, parity legislation

          5  creates a very large pool of insured individuals

          6  across which to spread the risks and costs, making

          7  the cost increase per insured person very low.

          8                 Even better, from the perspective of

          9  insurance companies and businesses, the experiences

         10  of states with parity laws show that both health

         11  insurance premiums and health plan costs generally

         12  increased by about one percent or less in the short

         13  term, and in some cases actually decreased over the

         14  longer term.  Early data show that minimal increases

         15  in plan costs after the implementation of state

         16  parity laws are minimal.

         17                 Initial increases in plan costs were

         18  less than one percent in Rhode Island, no increase

         19  in New Hampshire, and a point two percent decrease

         20  in Maryland.

         21                 Magellan Health Services, the

         22  nation's largest managed behavioral health care

         23  organization, reported premium increases that ranged

         24  between point- two and point- eight percent, under

         25  one percent, following implementation of state
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          2  mental health parity laws.

          3                 Some advocates for the insurance

          4  industry will argue that the increased cost will

          5  lead to more people becoming uninsured because

          6  employers will drop insurance coverage all together.

          7    This argument is answered by findings from a just-

          8  published systematic evaluation of the effects of

          9  Vermont's 1998 parity law, which reports that parity

         10  legislation did not generally cause employers to

         11  drop coverage or switch to self- insured products,

         12  and did not result in significant premium and health

         13  cost increases, despite the fact that Vermont's

         14  parity law is very comprehensive, including both

         15  substance abuse and small employers.

         16                 Finally, even if it were the case

         17  that Timothy's Law caused some increases in

         18  premiums, health costs, and the numbers of

         19  uninsured, which we do not acknowledge, we still

         20  could not justify solving, nor will we solve these

         21  persistent insurance industry problems at the

         22  expense of people with serious mental illness,

         23  anymore that we would argue "Let's cover only $25

         24  per visit up to a maximum of $750 per year for

         25  cancer or diabetes treatment to keep premiums and
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          2  health costs down."

          3                 No, it is discriminatory and it is

          4  morally wrong.

          5                 Timothy's Law will right that wrong.

          6                 Timothy's Law must be passed now.

          7                 MR. PERLMAN:  Good afternoon.

          8                 Madam Chairman, members of the

          9  Committee, my name is Barry Perlman.  I am a

         10  psychiatrist, and I have lived in Manhattan for my

         11  entire life.

         12                 I am here today as President of the

         13  New York State Psychiatric Association, which

         14  represents 5,100 practicing psychiatrists in New

         15  York State.

         16                 My colleague, Jeff Borenstein, is

         17  also a psychiatrist, resident of New York City, and

         18  President of the Queens County Psychiatric Society.

         19                 Our Association supports your

         20  resolution on Timothy's Law, and is deeply

         21  appreciative of your efforts in that regard.  We

         22  would like to acknowledge with sincere gratitude,

         23  Councilman David Weprin, for your dedication to this

         24  issue, and Chair Lopez for bringing the matter

         25  before this Committee.
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          2                 We are truly honored that you have

          3  chosen to join our crusade for fair insurance

          4  practices.

          5                 While we realize that this Council

          6  does not have ultimate jurisdiction in this matter,

          7  we believe that your expression of sentiment to the

          8  state legislature will go a long way to assuring

          9  that the Senate and Assembly reach an accord this

         10  year, and bring New York into the growing family of

         11  states that have enacted anti- discriminatory

         12  practices for health care plans in relation to

         13  mental illness and chemical dependency.

         14                 As highlighted in the resolution

         15  before you, the National Institute of Mental Health

         16  estimated that in any given year over 50 million

         17  American adults, 20 percent of the population,

         18  suffer from a mental disorder.  One in five children

         19  suffer from serious behavioral, emotional, or mental

         20  problems, and yet, in this great city and state we

         21  continue to allow health benefit plans to thwart

         22  full access to their benefits for many New Yorkers

         23  because state law supports the prevailing practice

         24  of their plan to continue to place limitations on

         25  treatment by restricting both in patient and out-
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          2  patient visits, and charging higher deductibles and

          3  co-payments for mental health treatment, which are

          4  not imposed on other medical conditions.

          5                 It is precisely these types of

          6  restrictions that have led to individuals from all

          7  walks of life to demand mental health and chemical

          8  dependency parity legislation, now known as

          9  Timothy's Law.

         10                 These practices are sustained on the

         11  erroneous assumption that mental illness and

         12  chemical dependency are somehow less significant

         13  than other medical diagnosis.

         14                 Mental illnesses are medical

         15  illnesses, as are heart disease, cancer, diabetes,

         16  and asthma.  Mental illnesses affect the most

         17  complex organ in the human body, the brain.

         18                 In the last few decades, scientific

         19  research has provided us with dramatic advances in

         20  understanding these illnesses and treating them in a

         21  cost effective fashion.  Now the time has come to

         22  make the same advances in health insurance coverage

         23  for the treatment of mental illness.

         24                 Presently, treatment for

         25  schizophrenia, Bipolar disorder, treatment of major
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          2  depression and panic disorder, obsessive compulsive

          3  disorder are all highly effective, comparable to the

          4  success rates we have in treating other medical

          5  disorders.

          6                 Not only have we begun to yield

          7  significant success rates but, we have also learned

          8  through actuarial analysis and emerging data from

          9  states with parity laws, that equitable insurance

         10  coverage for mental illness and chemical dependency

         11  is indeed affordable.

         12                 Furthermore, there is evidence that

         13  parity coverage for mental illness saves the

         14  economy, government and business alike, billions of

         15  dollars through increased productivity, decreased

         16  absenteeism and reduced public sector expenditures

         17  such as the state mental health system and juvenile

         18  justice systems.

         19                 At this point, I will interrupt my

         20  testimony and my colleague, Jeffrey Borenstein, will

         21  speak to some of the cost off set issues.

         22                 MR. BORENSTEIN:  I also want to thank

         23  Council Member Weprin for his leadership and support

         24  on this important issue, and Council Member Lopez as

         25  well for your leadership and support on this.
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          2                 I am going to speak about some of the

          3  concerns about the dollars and cents.

          4                 To paraphrase President Reagan during

          5  the debates,`There they go again, Madam Chairman',

          6  pushing these financial issues falsely.

          7                 Many corporations have implemented

          8  broader- based mental health and chemical dependency

          9  benefits for their employees, in an attempt to

         10  mitigate the exorbitant costs associated with

         11  untreated mental illnesses.

         12                 In 1999, the Surgeon General reported

         13  that the direct business costs of lack of parity

         14  coverage of mental illness treatment was at least

         15  $70 billion per year, mostly in the form of lost

         16  productivity and increased use of sick leave.

         17                 Additional reports cite that

         18  employees with insufficient mental health benefits

         19  overutilize their general health care services.

         20                 The Chevron Corporation, for example,

         21  found that it saved $7.00 for every dollar it spent

         22  on an employee assistance program offering mental

         23  health services.  DuPont, Dow, Federal Express,

         24  Xerox, and other major corporations reported reduced

         25  costs of 30 to 50 percent over one or two years,
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          2  after eliminating restrictive mental health limits.

          3                 A four year study of program

          4  effectiveness at McDonnell- Douglas yielded a four-

          5  to- one return on investment after considering

          6  medical claims, absenteeism, and turnover.  When the

          7  Kennecott Copper Corporation provided mental health

          8  counseling for employees, its hospital, medical, and

          9  surgical costs decrease 48.9 percent.

         10                 Conversely, studies have also shown

         11  the negative impact on costs associated with

         12  corporations reducing their mental health benefits.

         13  For example, a study recently published by Robert

         14  Rosenheck, at Yale University, highlighted this when

         15  he examined the results of a "national company

         16  reducing its mental health benefits by forty percent

         17  over a three year period, with a consequent

         18  offsetting increase of its primary health care

         19  expenses by forty percent.  The company's

         20  absenteeism rate increased by twenty percent and its

         21  worker productivity experienced a five percent

         22  decline.  Presumed savings from reduced mental

         23  health benefits had significant adverse health and

         24  productivity consequences, hidden by a narrow focus

         25  on cost of the mental health benefits alone."
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          2                 At this point, I am going to pass the

          3  microphone back to Dr. Perlman.

          4                 MR. PERLMAN:  States that are now

          5  providing increased access to treatment through

          6  parity laws are reporting favorable results.

          7                 Last year, the Substance Abuse and

          8  Mental Health Services Administration, SAMHSA,

          9  released a voluminous study that examined the

         10  effects of Vermont's mental health parity law which

         11  is undoubtedly the most comprehensive in the nation.

         12    They saw a zero to three percent increase in the

         13  cost of premiums.  Minnesota, on the other hand,

         14  whose 1995 parity law also covers a broad definition

         15  of mental illnesses and includes coverage for

         16  chemical dependency, saw a reduction of five to six

         17  percent in premium charges by Blue Cross/Blue Shield

         18  after one year's experience under the states' law.

         19                 As we discuss these issues today, the

         20  struggle in Albany between the proponents and

         21  opponents of parity continues to rage over the

         22  question of affordability.  Clearly, what we cannot

         23  afford is to allow this gaping hole in the health

         24  care delivery system to continue.  Sadly enough, it

         25  has taken the life and death of a boy and the
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          2  Herculean efforts of his loving and courageous

          3  parents to identify for the body politic, the

          4  ultimate costs adhering to the aforementioned

          5   "prevailing practices" of health insurers and

          6  HMO's.

          7                 It is for the above reasons, and in

          8  memory of Timothy O'Clair, that the New York State

          9  Psychiatric Association supports this timely

         10  resolution, and I should say our persuasive ability

         11  must be great because it is wonderful to testify

         12  after the vote is taken, and we are delighted to

         13  have persuaded you to urge the adoption of this

         14  bill.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you, Sir.

         17                 Any questions from the members of the

         18  Committee? Council Member Weprin, no?

         19                 I only want to make a comment to you.

         20    As I was listening to the three of you speaking,

         21  and giving us information, statistical information

         22  about how many companies have embraced the idea that

         23  providing mental health services in an adequate

         24  manner, it is a saving measurement instead of an

         25  expenditure measure.
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          2                 It had occurred to me some very sick

          3  idea in my     head, and it is that perhaps the

          4  industry wants to maintain mental health services

          5  without being covered because that way the can

          6  maintain artificial high prices for health care

          7  provisions.  And, perhaps, that is what is behind

          8  it, and it never occurred to me.

          9                 Then, I am beginning to be suspicious

         10  about the rational behind, it is a sick thought, but

         11  it came into my head as maybe that is the reason

         12  because it is too logical.

         13                 MR. PERLMAN:  Certainly you are not

         14  posing that as a question?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No, I am just

         16  speaking freely here, and you are more than welcome

         17  to comment if you want to.

         18                 MR. PERLMAN:  We would never

         19  attribute such motivation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay then,

         21  perhaps I am being involved in government for too

         22  long, and I am becoming a little bit cynical about

         23  what are the rational for this kind of legislation

         24  not to be passed yet.

         25                 Thank you to the three of you.
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          2                 MS. ROBERTS:  Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes, hold it a

          4  minute.  Council Member Weprin have a comment.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  I just have a

          6  comment, and it struck me when Dr. Roberts was

          7  testifying that it is really unconscionable for us

          8  to put costs above the health care of our citizenry,

          9  and that is so highlighted by the examples, the

         10  outrageous examples that Dr. Roberts referred to but

         11  it really shows a point that if the whole idea was

         12  to reduce the cost, we would not be providing care

         13  for any of our citizens for any diseases or any

         14  health problems, so, the absurdity to single out the

         15  mental health area when it clearly has proven and is

         16  such a horrible situation with so many of our

         17  constituents and the citizenry at large, is so

         18  discriminatory, and that is why we really owe you a

         19  debt of gratitude for persevering and stressing on

         20  your colleagues, and last time I looked

         21  psychiatrists were business people as well and

         22  clearly we are not solely altruistic, but they

         23  certainly see the benefit of providing medical

         24  services to all citizens.

         25                 So, we appreciate that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

          3                 At this moment, we are going to call

          4  the public that have been willing to come to testify

          5  in this hearing, and we are going to begin calling

          6  three people at the same time.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Our next

          8  panel will consist of Wanda Thomas, Sandra Ellen

          9  Brower, and Leo Hurley.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The other person

         11  is not here?

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  You are

         13  going to speak on behalf of Mr. Leo Hurley?  And you

         14  name is please, Ma'am?

         15                 MS. CALLAN:  Mary Callen.  I also

         16  filled out a form, just in case he was not able to

         17  stay.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Oh, okay.

         19  So at this moment, can you please raise your right

         20  hand?

         21                 Can you swear or affirm, the both of

         22  you, that this testimony you will be giving is

         23  truthful in all respects?

         24                 MS. CALLAN:  I do, yes.

         25                 MS. THOMAS:
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          2                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  You may

          3  begin.

          4                 MS. CALLAN:  My name is Mary Callan,

          5  and I am a member of the Long Island Recovery

          6  Advocates, and organization which was established to

          7  advocate for the rights and needs of those affected

          8  by alcoholism and drug dependence.

          9                 One of our goals is to achieve

         10  treatment parity for those suffering from these

         11  diseases.  Our organization is a member of Timothy's

         12  Law Coalition.  We supported this bill because it

         13  calls for treatment parity for alcoholism and

         14  chemical dependency as well as mental illness.

         15                 We were shocked to learn that a

         16  recent bill introduced into the Senate which has the

         17  support of Senator Bruno does not include parity for

         18  alcoholism and chemical dependence treatment.

         19                 I am here today to urge the New York

         20  City Council to support Resolution 248, which calls

         21  for the New York State Legislature to adopt

         22  Timothy's Law.

         23                 Persons suffering from the diseases

         24  of alcoholism and drug dependence deserve the same

         25  access to treatment as do sufferers from heart
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          2  disease, cancer, diabetes, or hypertension. Research

          3  has shown that all these diseases have genetic

          4  origins, and there are nonscientific or medical

          5  reasons to grant medical coverage for one in

          6  preference to another.

          7                 We congratulate the Council Committee

          8  on Mental Health, Mental Retardation, Alcoholism,

          9  Drug Abuse and Disability Service for proposing this

         10  resolution, and we hope that the New York City

         11  Council will unanimously vote for it.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         14                 MS. THOMAS:  Good afternoon, my name

         15  is Wanda Thomas.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  The light has

         17  to be off to be on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  We do that to

         19  trick people in here.  It is on purpose.

         20                 MR. THOMAS:  Okay, my name is Wanda

         21  Thomas.  I am here from Howie T. Harp Advocacy

         22  Center, and I also live in a SRO for people with

         23  disabilities.

         24                 I will be a graduate from the Center

         25  in October.  I hope to enlighten and advance the
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          2  workforce with my experience.  I am able- bodied and

          3  I want to work.  However, I need a guarantee that

          4  once I return to work, I will have access to health

          5  care I need.

          6                 Limited health coverage for already

          7  struggling consumers is an injustice.  Benefits

          8  should be equal for those with mental illness and

          9  chemical dependencies.  Without access to all forms

         10  of health coverage, individuals will not have

         11  stability, and the public will pay for these

         12  inconsistencies.  With behavioral health care

         13  coverage there would be stability and recovery for

         14  consumers.  Equal access and coverage will enable

         15  consumers to achieve their goals.

         16                 Without equal access to health care,

         17  the workforce will be limited in its participants.

         18  For those consumers hoping to move into employment,

         19  lack of parity insurance serves as a threat and a

         20  disincentive.  Insurance needs to be guaranteed for

         21  those with disabilities, rather than withheld.

         22                 Passing insurance will encourage

         23  consumers to return to work as well as save the

         24  public money.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

          3                 Any questions?

          4                 I want you to know that I was friends

          5  with Howie. I met him many, many years ago.  We used

          6  to work together on issues of mental illness.

          7                 MS. THOMAS:   I would like to say I

          8  also, I have gotten a lot more courage by going to

          9  this school, and to stand up for whatever I have.

         10                 So, in other words, I do not see it

         11  as a disability, it is just a little "malfunction".

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  What do mean?

         13                 MS. THOMAS:  Well, in other words, I

         14  am still able to work.  The car does not work

         15  totally always all the time, and it needs some

         16  stability with some medication.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Well, I do not

         18  even see it as a malfunction, I see it as doing it

         19  differently--.

         20                 MS. THOMAS:  Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: -- than other

         22  people do it. Whatever it is that has to be done.

         23                 MS. THOMAS:  But, I want to work and

         24  there is a lot of other people that want to work,

         25  they just need to be able to feel secure that they
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          2  have medical coverage and they can do what they have

          3  to do.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you for

          5  coming, both of you.

          6                 MS. THOMAS:  Thank you.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  I think we

          8  will need a fourth chair for this last panel.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 Next we will call Curtis Seyfried, if

         11  I am mispronouncing your name, my apologies, Janet

         12  Steinman, Vuka Stricevic, Sandra Ellen Brower.

         13                 If anyone has written statements,

         14  kindly hand them to the Sergeant- At- Arms and they

         15  will distribute them for you. Thank you.

         16                 Can you please raise your right

         17  hands?

         18                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         19  testimony you will provide here today will be

         20  truthful in all respects?

         21                 MS. STEINMAN:  I do.

         22                 MS. BROWER:  Yes, I do.

         23                 MR. SEYFRIED:  I do.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you,

         25  and you may, Sir on my left, please begin.
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          2                 MR. SEYFRIED:  Hello, my name is

          3  Curtis Seyfried. I am also a graduate of Howie T.

          4  Harp's Peer Specialist Training Program, and also a

          5  person with a psychiatric disability who lives in

          6  supportive housing.

          7                 I am very much an example of why

          8  parity is needed. I have suffered with depression

          9  and anxiety pretty much all of my life.  I am 52

         10  years old.  It was only seven years ago when I had a

         11  major crisis, and went to public assistance, then

         12  went through the homeless system, that I was able to

         13  start to get treatment because most of the times I

         14  did not have insurance, and the few times I did have

         15  insurance, I could not afford $50 co- payments more

         16  than once a month.  And, this is a very good reason

         17  why this bill needs to be passed, and I thank you

         18  very much for passing the resolution, and I hope the

         19  Senate listens to it.

         20                 Councilman Stewart asked before why

         21  this has not gone through.  Because of Bruno.  Three

         22  men run this state, Bruno, Silver and Pataki.  If

         23  Bruno does not want a bill on the floor, it does not

         24  come out of committee, period.  No one else's

         25  decision, except his.  He turned 73 this year.  I am
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          2  hoping that he will retire soon, and that we will

          3  have another Majority Leader of the Senate, and

          4  maybe the state can be run in a more equitable

          5  fashion because he stalls enormous amounts of

          6  legislation.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Sir, how

          9  do you spell you last name please?

         10                 MR. SEYFRIED:  S- E- Y- F- R- I- E-

         11  D.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         13                 MS. STEINMAN:  Good afternoon.  My

         14  name is Janet Lee Steinman, and I am here today

         15  representing the Committee on Mental Health from the

         16  Association of the Bar of the City of New York.

         17                 I am also here on my own behalf, as I

         18  feel strongly about and can personally related to

         19  this hearings subject matter.

         20                 Several weeks ago, our Bar

         21  Association Committee provided New York State Senate

         22  Members with a report urging the enactment of the

         23  Assembly's bill known as Timothy's Law.

         24                 This bill seeks to ensure that

         25  insurance companies and HMO's provide mental health
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          2  and chemical dependency coverage on terms comparable

          3  to other health care and medical services.

          4                 For your convenience, I have attached

          5  a copy our report to my testimony.  Our report

          6  states that parity or comparability in heath care

          7  services will only be achieved by equalizing

          8  deductibles, co- payments, and caps on office and

          9  hospital visits.  The Assembly's version of

         10  Timothy's Law would prevent insurers from using

         11  legally available loopholes to avoid fair coverage.

         12                 Permitting the use of

         13  preauthorization, waiting periods and other often

         14  unwritten procedures, protects employers and

         15  insurers with the idea that somehow individuals will

         16   "misuse the availability of mental health services,

         17  but leaves mentally ill employees with insurance

         18  coverage that is often too little, too late."

         19                 Our report also rebuts the arguments

         20  made by opponents of Timothy's Law, that its

         21  enactment would be too costly for New Yorkers.  To

         22  the contrary, we cite two various studies that

         23  demonstrate that an additional cost to employers are

         24  speculative, at best, and minimal if they exist at

         25  all.
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          2                 More importantly, we discuss studies

          3  which show that any costs in covering the care for

          4  mental illness would be offset by the decreased cost

          5  in physical health care.

          6                 Further, there is ample evidence that

          7  providing better mental health coverage would result

          8  in not only less absenteeism but also greater

          9  productivity.

         10                 As a person directly affected by

         11  mental illness, I can demonstrate the personal and

         12  societal benefits of providing adequate insurance

         13  coverage for mental illness.  My son, who has ADHA,

         14  Asberger's syndrome and Tourette's syndrome has been

         15  hospitalized in a psychiatric ward once for violent

         16  hypomania.  I have Bipolar disorder and have been

         17  hospitalized twice, once for depression and once for

         18  hypomania.

         19                 Regarding the issue of misuse of

         20  services, I cannot imagine why anyone would choose

         21  to be in a psychiatric ward, unless that was their

         22  last chance.  Fortunately for us, my insurance and

         23  my husband's insurance covered most of the costs of

         24  those hospital stays.  However, we do have to pay

         25  most of the costs of regular and necessary visits
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          2  with our treating psychiatrists.  It is a burden on

          3  our family finances but one we are able to meet.

          4                 Many people are not so fortunate.

          5  The circumstances that gave rise to Timothy's Law

          6  are personally heartbreaking for me, especially

          7  since I have seen the patients in a children's

          8  psychiatric ward.  It is a sad story that could

          9  happen to anyone, and tragically, it may have been

         10  prevented.

         11                 Certainly one of the reasons that I

         12  and my son are contributing and rather ordinary

         13  members of society, is because we were able to get

         14  good psychiatric are, and have a reasonable amount

         15  covered by insurance.

         16                 I do not believe that New Yorkers

         17  mental health should depend on the luck of having an

         18  insurance policy with parity.  There is a genuine

         19  injustice in the way insurance companies in this

         20  state can currently cover significantly less for

         21  illnesses which are just as, if not more,

         22  debilitating as those classically categorized as

         23   "physical", and for which treatment has proven

         24  effective.

         25                 Finally, comparability for health

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  service coverage should go a long way in reducing

          3  the myth that individuals with a mental illness are

          4  unable to function at work, school or in other

          5  settings.  Our potential in this world should not be

          6  circumscribed by prejudice while insurance companies

          7  are able to provide unequal coverage for "physical"

          8  and mental illnesses.  Rather, we should all have

          9  the same opportunity to live our dreams and be

         10  positive contributors to society and the state's

         11  economy.

         12                 Thank you for your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Amen.

         14                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Sir, you

         15  may proceed.

         16                 MR. BARR:  Good afternoon, my name is

         17  Dennis Barr (phonetic), and I am speaking of behalf

         18  of Vuka Sticevic, Policy Associate at Community

         19  Access.

         20                 I would like to thank Councilman

         21  (sic) Lopez and the Council's Committee on Mental

         22  Health, Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse

         23  and Disability Services for giving New Yorkers the

         24  opportunity to provide testimony regarding the

         25  importance of passage of comprehensive behavioral
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          2  health insurance parity legislation.

          3                 The next paragraph I will skip.

          4                 New Yorkers want to work and have

          5  access to comprehensive health care.  Community

          6  Access has been integrating supportive services with

          7  permanent housing since 1974, and provides service

          8  to over 2,000 psychiatric disabled individuals in

          9  New York each year.

         10                 Today, there are over 250 employees

         11  working for Community Access, many of whom are

         12  mental health consumers.  In fact, over 95 percent

         13  of our staff have been institutionalized at least

         14  once, and over 60 percent have been homeless.  While

         15  the majority of the people who live with us, work

         16  for us, or utilize our services want to work and

         17  simultaneously have access to comprehensive health

         18  care insurance, New York is one of the few states

         19  that has not passed parity legislation.

         20                 In New York State, insurers currently

         21  limit the number of inpatient and outpatient mental

         22  health visits per year and charge higher

         23  deductibles, and higher co- payments for mental

         24  health and substance use treatment than they for

         25  somatic health services.
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          2                 Nationwide, 44.3 million adults have

          3  a diagnosable mental disorder and an estimated 14.5

          4  million adults have been classified with dependence

          5  on alcohol or illicit drugs.  This means that 23

          6  percent of adults have a diagnosable mental

          7  disorder, six percent have addictive disorders, and

          8  three percent have both mental and addictive

          9  disorders.  Sadly, few will be able to afford such

         10  care with the current limitations imposed by most

         11  private health insurance plans.  I am here today, on

         12  behalf of the community Access community, to

         13  encourage the new York City Council to support a

         14  Resolution 248, encouraging passage of long overdue

         15  comprehensive health care parity legislation.

         16                 Without passage of such law, the

         17  State's workforce faces discrimination when seeking

         18  coverage for mental health or chemical dependency

         19  services.  The staff of Community Access, alongside

         20  millions of employed New Yorkers, face significant

         21  barriers to accessing health care.  While 98 percent

         22  of employer funded insurance plans provide mental

         23  health and chemical dependency treatment, this

         24  coverage is severely limited.

         25                 Many private insurers, like the plan
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          2  offered at Community Access, provide a standard

          3  benefit limitation of 30 inpatient and 40 outpatient

          4  mental health visits per year with

          5  a 50 percent co- payment.  Because of these coverage

          6  inconsistencies, employees statewide are often

          7  unable to simultaneously obtain job stability and

          8  adequate health care.  As New York's workforce is

          9  faced with only partial coverage for their mental

         10  health and chemical dependency needs, employers are

         11  left with limited opportunities to meet the health

         12  care needs of valued employees.

         13                 As a leader in promoting recover and

         14  rehabilitation among the psychiatrically disable

         15  community, Community Access both trains and hires

         16  mental health consumers.  We have found that

         17  preparing psychiatrically disable individuals for

         18  careers as peer specialists at our award- winning

         19  Howie the Harp Advocacy Center, "the Center", is a

         20  successful method of treating mental illness. I am a

         21  graduate and employee of the Center.

         22                 The Center trains mental health

         23  consumer for careers in both human services and

         24  mainstream employment.  The Center's curriculum

         25  includes job readiness training, training in peer
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          2  counseling, advocacy, group facilitation, crisis

          3  support, and job placement.

          4                 Since its inception in 1995, the

          5  Howie the Harp Center has placed more than 300

          6  consumers into positions of paid employment.

          7                 Further, 70 percent of Center

          8  graduates are currently working in permanent jobs,

          9  and the typical graduate placed in a full- time

         10  position earns $24,000 per year.  While mental

         11  health peer specialists are integral to a vibrant

         12  and productive workforce, trained peers need access

         13  to ongoing treatment so they may maintain their

         14  health and employment.

         15                 While many members of the

         16  psychiatrically disabled community look forward to

         17  obtaining full- time work and transitioning to

         18  independence, such a goal is often hindered given

         19  the reality of their limited access to health care

         20  once reliant on job- offered insurance.

         21  Undoubtedly, mental illness can be treated and

         22  individuals with access to on going treatment can

         23  attain and meet their employment goals.

         24                 In fact, the treatment success rate

         25  for a first episode of schizophrenia is 60 percent,
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          2  65- 70 percent for major depression, and 80 percent

          3  for Bipolar disorder.

          4                 As such, I urge the New York City

          5  Council to support law, aimed at dismantling the

          6  egregious barriers faced by those seeking

          7  comprehensive behavioral health care coverage once

          8  insured privately.

          9                 Inequitable health care coverage is

         10  an obstacle for homeless New Yorkers.  Over the past

         11  year, New York City has experienced the largest one-

         12  year increase in homelessness since the Great

         13  Depression and since there are over 38,000 homeless

         14  children and adults sleeping in City shelters each

         15  night.  It has been estimated that at least 25

         16  percent of these homeless New Yorkers have a mental

         17  illness.  Unfortunately, given the inadequate

         18  coverage offered by private insurance plans, these

         19  vulnerable New Yorkers face high health care risks

         20  upon a return to employment. While the majority of

         21  homeless New Yorkers qualify for Medicaid, they lose

         22  these comparatively comprehensive benefits upon

         23  achievement of gainful employment.  Limiting health

         24  care coverage for impoverished New Yorkers once they

         25  increase their earning potential, creates a glaring
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          2  work disincentive.

          3                 At present, with marked prevalence of

          4  mental illness and chemical dependency among poor

          5  New Yorkers, sparse access to comprehensive benefits

          6  through employer sponsored insurance plans prevents

          7  people from both seeking work and achieving

          8  successful job performance.

          9                 As New York City strives to address

         10  the homelessness crisis and provide work incentives

         11  for poor people, parity insurance is a critical and

         12  evident solution.

         13                 Comprehensive behavioral health care

         14  parity is cost effective.  Passage of comprehensive

         15  behavioral health insurance parity law is

         16  economically and socially cost effective.  Studies

         17  have demonstrated that providing coverage for mental

         18  illness on the same terms and conditions as physical

         19  illness can be done at minimal cost.  According to a

         20  study conducted y Price Waterhouse Coopers, adoption

         21  of such law in New York would only increase

         22  insurance premiums by $1.26 per month, a price New

         23  York is willing to pay.

         24                 Currently, New Yorkers pay sharp out-

         25  of- pocket payments for mental health care or
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          2  chemical dependency services or remain on Medicaid

          3  knowing that maintaining Medicaid eligibility may be

          4  the only way they will retain adequate health care

          5  coverage. Parity law would alleviate this high cost

          6  burden placed on thousands of individuals and

          7  families with mental illness, as well as reduce the

          8  socioeconomic costs of disability and loss of

          9  productivity throughout the workforce.

         10                 Considering the current vulnerable

         11  economic status of New York, it is imperative that

         12  measures are taken to keep working New Yorkers

         13  healthy and save money.  Failure to pass

         14  comprehensive behavioral health insurance parity

         15  legislation will undoubtedly result in working

         16  individuals unfairly paying for their health care.

         17                 Further, inequitable health care

         18  coverage hinders impoverished New Yorkers from

         19  realizing gainful employment.  While most people

         20  living with severe mental illness want to work, the

         21  combination of stigma associated with mental

         22  illness, the lack of accommodations, and the labor

         23  market characteristics are central barriers to

         24  employment.  In fact, "the unemployment rate among

         25  New York State's population of people with serious
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          2  mental illness is about 90 percent, mirroring the

          3  National statistic."  While addressing the

          4  unemployment rate among the mentally ill is sound

          5  economic policy, increasing access to jobs for

          6  mentally ill people also promotes recovery,

          7  independence, and rehabilitation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You must wrap up

          9  your testimony.

         10                 MR. BARR:  I am, that is it.

         11                 In conclusion, I encourage the New

         12  York City Council to pass Resolution 248 supporting

         13  comprehensive behavioral health insurance parity law

         14  and look forward to New York's favorable response.

         15                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         16  testify.

         17                 MS. BROWER:  You want me to top that?

         18    What are you crazy?

         19                 Sorry, that was the wrong way to say

         20  it.

         21                 Sorry I had to leave, I thought this

         22  was going to be a tedious one like the last

         23  testimony I had to give, and it was not.

         24                 Dear City Council Member Margarita

         25  Lopez.  I Sandra Ellen Brower hereby testify to
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          2  support Timothy's Law, which would result in

          3  behavioral health, mental health parity.

          4                 We need equal health insurance

          5  coverage for everyone, no matter what their health

          6  problem is.  No one should be penalized just because

          7  they have a mental illness or a drug or alcohol

          8  problem.

          9                 Mental health care should include the

         10  following. Immediate access, so that a person who

         11  needs help can see a professional, such as a

         12  psychiatrist, therapist, or hospital, if needed.

         13  Secondly, an assessment as soon as possible so they

         14  can get the right kind of treatment for the

         15  particular problem they may have.  Before taking any

         16  kind of medication, a person or a family member

         17  seeking mental health care should research the side

         18  effects, which may be worse and even more dangerous

         19  than the initial illness, and unfortunately, cause a

         20  person to become suicidal.  For example, I recently

         21  saw on TV how dangerous some anti- depressants can

         22  be.  Some even leading to suicide because some of

         23  the reverse side effects do not appear on the label

         24  it is very important for those seeking treatment to

         25  learn about all the side effects.            Unfortunately
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          2  , a friend of mine recently died at the young age of

          3  24.  This may have been cause by the medication he

          4  was taking.  I know this was a possibility because I

          5  saw him the day before he died.  He had everything

          6  in the world going for him and was getting ready to

          7  start a new job.  Nothing seemed wrong.  He could

          8  have been my son.  After all, I am 46 years old.  It

          9  affected me so deeply that something like this could

         10  happen to someone so young.

         11                 Another important best practice is to

         12  get a person seeking help, and their family involved

         13  in groups learning as much as possible about

         14  treatment and illness is also important.  For

         15  families hoping to help their child, research and

         16  understanding is also important in helping their

         17  child understand and cope with their illness.

         18  Hotlines should be available to those seeking

         19  treatment, and their family members.  By following

         20  these practices, we can prevent more people from

         21  committing suicide and winding up the way poor

         22  Timothy did.  As you know, family continues to

         23  grieve for a loss, which could have been avoided had

         24  the system given them the proper help they needed to

         25  treat their son.
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          2                 We definitely need lots of less

          3  people committing suicide.  After all, you would not

          4  want something this unfortunate to happen to your or

          5  your family, and go through what their son went

          6  through and what they are going through now because

          7  then it will be too late.  If you truly love

          8  children they way I do, then something like this

          9  would truly break your heart.

         10                 New York must ensure equal access to

         11  treatment as well as best practices.  Passage of

         12  Timothy's Law will ensure that the millions of

         13  individuals and families can access behavioral

         14  health care treatment.  Thirty- three states have

         15  already passed parity legislation.  Access will

         16  prevent suicide.

         17                 Thanks for taking the time to read

         18  this and look into this very important matter.

         19                 Sincerely,

         20                 Sandra Ellen Brower

         21                 Now, I missed two things of Timothy's

         22  Law that I was supposed to go to.  One because of my

         23  medication, which I am off of, and do not take

         24  anything but I go my psychiatrist and my therapist

         25  and they say I am doing great.  The other one is
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          2  because I missed the train.  So, I asked my

          3  clubhouse Community Access if I could make it

          4  Timothy's Law Day, which should be every day, and

          5  they loved it.  We put it on the computer.  I told

          6  them about it, and I got some very good responses.

          7  I am also going to Urban Justice, and taking an

          8  advocacy class, which I will graduate in the fall

          9  along with the ACE Program that I took in December,

         10  we are graduating, that is part of Howie T. Harp.

         11  And, I also belong to the Baltic Peer Advocacy

         12  Program.

         13                 Thank you for your time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I thank you very

         15  much for your testimony.  It was very, very, very

         16  well put together, each one of you.

         17                 I do not know if Council Member

         18  Weprin have any statement to make?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  No, we just

         20  appreciate the advocacy on behalf of all the

         21  advocates, and it is really so important that you

         22  not give up and you continue with the fight.

         23                 MS. BROWER:  Oh, by the way, I have a

         24  petition here. I want 5,000 people to sign it if

         25  this is not passed, and it is getting sent to the
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          2  White House.  So, if you guys are allowed to sign it

          3  fine, if not I can understand that because I do not

          4  want you loosing your jobs.  And, the first other

          5  one besides me signing it is I want Timothy's Dad to

          6  sign this, if he will.  It is nice to see a smile on

          7  your face.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I would have lost

          9  my job a long time ago for all of the things I have

         10  done in my life.

         11                 MR. BARR:  First of all, I would like

         12  to say again, it is nice to see you again, Ms.

         13  Lopez.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And my name is

         15  Margarita for you.

         16                 MR. BARR:  Okay, Margarita.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Take out the Ms.

         18  Lopez business.

         19                 MR. BARR:  Okay, Margarita and the

         20  young lady there, I forgot her name but when you all

         21  visited the Howard the Harp Center, we was grateful

         22  that you all came and we will continue to do what we

         23  do, as best as we can.

         24                 I am a Program Service Coordinator

         25  there, and I truly like what I do.  Our people are
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          2  enthusiastic, and we plan to get them more involved

          3  in this with Vuka doing this because training them

          4  to work in the human service field, I mean also

          5  training them to advocate for what they really need,

          6  and that is what we do.

          7                 So, thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I am going to

          9  adjourn this meeting.  At this moment, I am going to

         10  make only three comments.

         11                 Number one comment;  if this bill is

         12  not passed in the Senate and the Assembly, in the

         13  couple of days that are left, I am making a promise

         14  to all of you that we are going to have a second

         15  hearing on this issue, in this House, and the second

         16  hearing is going to be bringing here the Minority

         17  Leader of the Senate and the Chair of the Committee

         18  on Mental Health, to come here to explain to us why

         19  this bill is not being passed by Albany to begin a

         20  campaign that, I think, we should put in place about

         21  putting another resolution, not this time asking the

         22  Assembly and the   Senate to pass it but a

         23  resolution to ask all of the cities of the State of

         24  New York to pass a similar resolution to this one in

         25  order to begin putting pressure on the Assembly and
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          2  the Senate.  Those are the two comments I had to

          3  make for why we are going to be doing and increasing

          4  pressure on this issue.

          5                 And, the last comment that I want to

          6  make, I want to answer a question that you asked

          7  about Senator Bruno.

          8                 You see, in life it is very difficult

          9  to know when you are walking naked on the street

         10  unless other people tell you. In this case, the

         11  Senate have the Majority Leader, Senator Bruno,

         12  walking naked all the time but the people who

         13  elected him to that position are as responsible as

         14  he is of not passing the laws that are necessary for

         15  our City.  Then, Senator Bruno and the people who

         16  support him to become the Majority Leader of the

         17  Senate are responsible for what is going on.  It is

         18  not just him.

         19                 MR. BARR:  That is right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you very

         21  much and this hearing is adjourned.

         22                 (Meeting adjourned 3:00 p.m.)

         23
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